Sgríbhinní Institiúid Árd-Léinn Bhaile Átha Cliath Sraith A, Uimh. 17

Communications of the Dublin Institute for Advanced Studies. Series A, No. 17

# ASPECTS OF THE CURRENT ALGEBRA APPROACH

BY

C. RYAN

#### DUBLIN

INSTITIÚID ÁRD-LÉINN BHAILE ÁTHA CLIATH DUBLIN INSTITUTE FOR ADVANCED STUDIES

### ASPECTS OF THE CURRENT ALGEBRA APPROACH

#### C. Ryan

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
I.	INTRODUCTION	1
II.	Outline of the Current Algebra Approach	3
III.	The Currents and the Commutation Relations	6
IV.	Getting Solutions	12
	(a) The Lee-Dashen-Gell-Mann Procedure	13
	(b) The Fubini-Furlan Technique	23
v.	Other Applications	40
	(a) Renormalization of Strangeness Changing Axial Current	40
	(b) Pion-Pion and Pion-Kaon Scattering	46
	(c) Baryon Magnetic Moments	48
VI.	Covariant Formulation and Connection with Soft Pion Emission	51
	Conclusion	59

#### C. Ryan

#### I. INTRODUCTION.

The past two years has seen the very rapid development in particle physics of the subject known as the current algebra approach or simply current algebras. The central idea in this development was first stated explicitly by Gell-Mann<sup>1)</sup> in his paper on the octet model of unitary symmetry, though it is contained implicitly in his earlier paper with Levy<sup>2)</sup> on the partially conserved axial vector current hypothesis. Briefly this idea is that physical currents (i.e. currents which enter in physical theories) may form Lie algebras or more simply physical currents may satisfy among themselves certain well defined commutation relations. Further elaboration of this proposal by Gell-Mann and a number of collaborators is to be found in several subsequent publications<sup>3)</sup>.

The present spate of activity in this area seems to take

Based on a seminar given at the Universities of Glasgow, Edinburgh and Durham, May 1966.

its origin from two more or less complementary contributions which appeared at the beginning of 1965. The first of these is contained in the papers of B.W. Lee<sup>4</sup> and of Dashen and Gell-Mann<sup>5</sup> in which it is shown that many of the results of a higher symmetry (in this case SU(6)) can be obtained from a straightforward application of the current algebra approach. This was a very valuable discovery and while some of the arguments used in these papers were later shown to have quite drastic implications<sup>6</sup>, the general philosophy of this work, namely to use current algebras to derive physically interesting results, was widely accepted and applied.

The second crucial contribution was that of Fubini and Furlan<sup>7)</sup> who proposed an elegant method of deriving exact sum rules from certain current commutation relations. The importance of this method is that it enables one to fill certain gaps which remained in the more approximate treatment of Lee and of Dashen and Gell-Mann. This work of Lee, Dashen and Gell-Mann and of Fubini and Furlan together provided the impetus for the present extensive work in current algebras.

The aim of this report is to give a fairly simple account of and commentary on the early development of the current algebra approach. We first outline what is meant by this approach

and how it is used to obtain results of physical interest.

Secondly we comment on two of the major ingredients of the approach namely the currents and their commutation relations.

Under the heading "Getting Results" are described the procedures of Lee, Dashen and Gell-Mann and of Fubini and Furlan for deriving physical results. Finally we mention some other applications and describe briefly some recent developments.

#### II. OUTLINE OF THE CURRENT ALGEBRA APPROACH.

Among the objects used to describe physical phenomena in quantum field theoretic terms a prominent place is held by a class of operators known as the currents. These are certain local operators whose matrix elements enter the amplitudes for various physical processes. As examples we might cite the electromagnetic and weak currents which play a central role in the description of electromagnetic and weak interactions or the pion current which is the operator which appears on the right hand side of the equation for the pion field operator. We denote by  $J_A^{\alpha}(\mathbf{x},\mathbf{t})$  the current operators we are concerned with, A being the Lorentz index and  $\alpha$  being the internal quantum number index. (Instead of speaking of currents here

we might generalize the discussion and speak of local operators in general; anything said concerning currents can be applied, mutatis mutandis, to all local operators of the theory.)

Given the current operators  $J_A^{\alpha}(x,t)$ , we now make the basic assumption that the equal time commutator of at least some pairs of these are linear combinations of the current operators themselves, plus possibly some other measurable local operators. We assume, therefore, a relation of the form

$$\begin{bmatrix} J_A^{\alpha}(x,t), J_B^{\beta}(y,t) \end{bmatrix} = \delta^{3}(x-y) \sum_{K(A\alpha, B\beta; C\gamma)} J_C^{\gamma}(x,t) + \text{"other measurable local operators"}$$
 (1)

where the K(Aα, Bβ; Cγ) are known constants which we might call structure constants. We see from this relation that if the "other measurable local operators" are absent, our assumption is equivalent to saying that the currents, which are finite in number, form a finite Lie algebra. This is the or igin of the term current algebra. Hereafter we shall assume that these "other measurable local operators" are indeed absent; this is not an essential assumption and we make it only in the interests of simplicity.

Now with regard to current operators in general, the physically meaningful things are their matrix elements between

physical states. These matrix elements are measurable in various strong, electromagnetic and weak processes. The value of a relation such as (1) is that it offers the possibility of calculating these matrix elements theoretically, for this relation is nothing but an infinite set of coupled equations for the matrix elements of the currents  $J_A^{\alpha}(\mathbf{x},\mathbf{t})$ . This is seen by taking its matrix element between any pair of physical states  $|\mathbf{i}\rangle$  and  $|\mathbf{j}\rangle$  and inserting a sum over a complete set of states between the operators on the left hand side. In this way we get

$$\sum_{\mathbf{n}} \langle \mathbf{j} | J_{\mathbf{A}}^{\alpha}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{t}) | \mathbf{n} \rangle \langle \mathbf{n} | J_{\mathbf{B}}^{\beta}(\mathbf{y}, \mathbf{t}) | \mathbf{i} \rangle - \langle \mathbf{j} | J_{\mathbf{B}}^{\beta}(\mathbf{y}, \mathbf{t}) | \mathbf{n} \rangle \langle \mathbf{n} | J_{\mathbf{A}}^{\alpha}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{t}) | \mathbf{i} \rangle$$

$$= \delta^{3}(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \sum_{\mathbf{C}, \mathbf{Y}} K(\mathbf{A}\alpha, \mathbf{B}\beta; \mathbf{C}\mathbf{Y}) \langle \mathbf{j} | J_{\mathbf{C}}^{\mathbf{Y}}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{t}) | \mathbf{i} \rangle, (2)$$

and as |i> and |j> range over all physical states we obtain an infinite set of coupled equations for the matrix elements of the currents.

The important task now is to devise means of solving these equations in various cases of interest. This question we shall take up in due course. Before that we would like to discuss in more detail the basic commutation relations expressed in (1).

#### III. THE CURRENTS AND THE COMMUTATION RELATIONS.

The idea that physical current operators might satisfy a commutation relation like that given in (1) was first suggested by Gell-Mann<sup>1</sup>). His argument was as follows. In a Lagrangian quantum field theory where there exists an exact symmetry under a Lie group of transformations, the infinitesimal generators of this group are given as the space integrals of the time components of the divergenceless vector (or, in general, tensor) currents which arise naturally from the symmetry in accordance with Noether's theorem<sup>8</sup>). Thus if we denote by I the generators of such a group we have

$$I_{\alpha} = \int d^3x \, V_{\mu_{\theta} \alpha}(x,t) \qquad (3)$$

where  $V_{\mu,\alpha}(x,t)$  is the divergenceless vector (or tensor) current arising from the symmetry.

Now the infinitesimal generators of a Lie group form a Lie algebra i.e. the set of operators  $\{I_\alpha\}$  is closed under commutation. We have therefore the commutation relations

$$\left[I_{\alpha},I_{\beta}\right]=iC_{\alpha\beta\gamma}I_{\gamma},\qquad (4)$$

where  $C_{\alpha\beta\gamma}$  are the structure constants of the group. Furthermore if the group in question is assumed to be an internal symmetry group the divergenceless currents  $V_{\mu,\alpha}(x,t)$  transform as members of the regular representation of the group i.e.

$$\left[I_{\alpha}, V_{\mu,\beta}(x,t)\right] = i C_{\alpha\beta\gamma} V_{\mu,\gamma}(x,t). \qquad (5)$$

If we now wish to speculate about the commutator of  $V_{4,\alpha}(x,t)$  and  $V_{4,\beta}(y,t)$  we note that it must vanish for  $x \neq y$  in accordance with microcausality and if we assume that at x = y it is not more singular than a  $\delta$ -function then eqs.(3) and (5) tell us that we must have

$$\left[V_{4,\alpha}(x,t),V_{4,\beta}(y,t)\right] = -\delta^{3}(x-y)C_{\alpha\beta\gamma}V_{4,\gamma}(x,t).$$
(6)

This was the first equal time current commutation relation and all other such relations are written down in analogy with it.

We wish to make the following points about this commutation relation and about current commutation relations in general.

1. Although eq.(6) was suggested by a certain internal symmetry the existence of such a symmetry is not necessary in order that this relation be true. On the contrary, given a field theory involving Dirac fields  $\psi_i(x)$  of number N equal to the dimension of some representation of the Lie group G and defining the quantities

where 
$$\Psi(x,t) = \overline{\Psi}(x,t) \gamma_{\perp} t_{\alpha} \Psi(x,t) ,$$

$$\Psi(x,t) = \begin{pmatrix} \psi_{1}(x,t) \\ \psi_{2}(x,t) \\ \psi_{M}(x,t) \end{pmatrix},$$

and  $t_{\alpha}$  are the matrices of the N-dimensional representation of G, we find that the operators  $Q_{\alpha}(x,t)$  satisfy the commutation relations of the Lie algebra of the group G, provided only that the  $\psi_{i}(x,t)$  satisfy the ordinary anticommutation relations of fermi fields and without any assumption of invariance under the group G. This illustrates the fact that a Lie group may through a current algebra play an important role without at all being an invariance group of the underlying theory. Herein lies a possibility of understanding the various higher symmetry groups which have been under discussion for some time.

(In practice it may be necessary to assume invariance under some internal symmetry group in order to derive useful results but this is not always the case. For instance the well-known Adler-Weisberger calculation does not assume isospin invariance.)

2. In deriving commutation relations for currents other than those which arise as a result of invariance under a Lie group we generally appeal to a model. For theories wherein the fundamental internal symmetry is isospin, we postulate a model in which the Lagrangian contains only a fundamental doublet field, while for unitary symmetry, SU(3), we take a model whose Lagrangian is constructed from a fundamental quark or triplet

field. In such theories we can construct currents of the

$$J_{A}^{\alpha}(x) = \bar{\psi}(x,t) \Gamma_{A} t^{\alpha} \psi(x,t) , \qquad (7)$$

where the  $\Gamma_A$  stand for the 16 members of the Dirac algebra and the  $t^{\alpha}$  are the matrices of the fundamental representation of the internal symmetry group plus the unit matrix, being  $(\frac{\tau_{\alpha}}{2}, 1)$  for the isospin group and  $(\frac{\lambda_{\alpha}}{2}, 1)$  for the SU(3) group.

The equal-time commutation relations of currents  $J_{\mathbf{A}}^{\alpha}(\mathbf{x},t)$  may now be deduced provided only that the equal-time commutation relations of the fields  $\psi(\mathbf{x},t)$  are known. If, as is usually assumed, these are simply the ordinary anticommutation relations of fermi fields, we obtain the equal-time commutation relation

$$[J_{A}^{\alpha}(x,t), J_{B}^{\beta}(y,t)] = \delta^{3}(x-y)\psi^{+}(x,t)[\gamma_{4} T^{\alpha}, \gamma_{4}\Gamma_{B}t^{\beta}]\psi(x,t).$$
(8)

Then, using the identity

$$[\gamma_{\underline{\mu}}\Gamma_{\underline{A}}t^{\alpha}, \gamma_{\underline{\mu}}\Gamma_{\underline{B}}t^{\beta}] = \frac{1}{2} [\gamma_{\underline{\mu}}\Gamma_{\underline{A}}, \gamma_{\underline{\mu}}\Gamma_{\underline{B}}] \{t^{\alpha}, t^{\beta}\}$$

$$+ \frac{1}{2} \{\gamma_{\underline{\mu}}\Gamma_{\underline{A}}, \gamma_{\underline{\mu}}\Gamma_{\underline{B}}\} [t^{\alpha}, t^{\beta}]$$

and the fact that the  $\Gamma_A$  and  $t^{\alpha}$  are algebras, the right hand side of eq.(8) can be expressed as a linear combination

of the currents, thus yielding a relation of the form given in eq.(1). The point of this discussion is to show that there exist realistic models in which current commutation relations such as those postulated in section 2 are satisfied.

In connection with the derivation of eq.(8) it seems worthwhile drawing attention to two points. The first is that the assumption of ordinary fermi field anticommutation relations for  $\psi(x,t)$  is not necessary. It is sufficient, for instance, if  $\psi(x,t)$  satisfies

$$[\psi_{a}(x,t), \psi_{b}^{\dagger}(y,t) \psi_{c}(y,t)] = \delta_{ab} \delta^{3}(x-y) \psi_{c}(x,t)$$
 (9)

and this relation is much more general than the ordinary anticommutation relations (it includes them as a special case). Relations such as (9) form the basis of the subject of parastatistics. From a physical viewpoint what this implies is that, as far as current commutation relations go, the quanta of the fundamental fields, if such exist, need not be fermions, but rather particles satisfying a more general type of statistics. This is a welcome feature since it allows one more easily to construct the normal hadron states as bound states of the fundamental particles 10).

The second point about the commutation relation (8) is that in general the assumption that the singularity involved is no worse than a delta-function is not justified. Specifically we have the so-called Schwinger terms  $^{11}$ . These terms arise because of the highly singular nature of currents defined as bilinear products of the field quantities taken at the same space-time point. If instead of eq.(7) we define the currents  $J_A^{\alpha}(x,t)$  as

$$J_{A}^{\alpha}(x,t) = \lim_{\epsilon \to 0} \bar{\psi}(x-\epsilon, t) \Gamma_{A} t^{\alpha} \psi(x+\epsilon, t) , \qquad (10)$$

we obtain the commutation relation

$$[J_{A}^{\alpha}(x,t), J_{B}^{\beta}(y,t)] = \delta^{3}(x-y)\lim_{\epsilon \to 0} \psi^{+}(x-\frac{\epsilon}{2},t)[\gamma_{L}\Gamma_{A}t^{\alpha}, \gamma_{L}\Gamma_{B}t^{\beta}] \times \psi(x+\frac{\epsilon}{2},t)$$

$$+ \lim_{\epsilon \to 0} \frac{1}{2} (\nabla^{\delta}\delta^{3}(x-y))\psi^{+}(x-\frac{\epsilon}{2},t)[\gamma_{L}\Gamma_{A}t^{\alpha}, \gamma_{L}\Gamma_{B}t^{\beta}]$$

$$\times \psi(x+\frac{\epsilon}{2},t) , \qquad (11)$$

where lim is understood to be averaged over all space direcε+0
tions and higher powers in ε are assumed to vanish in the
limit. The second term on the right hand side is known as
the Schwinger term.

Generally this term cannot be assumed to vanish. One way of avoiding the difficulties it presents is to use, not the current operators themselves, but their integrals over

all space. If this is done the Schwinger term plays no role, as can be seen by integrating eq.(11) over  $\vec{x}$  and  $\vec{y}$ . Another suggestion is that of Bouchiat and Meyer<sup>12</sup>, who noticed that in the quark model the Schwinger term is symmetric against the simultaneous interchange of space and internal symmetry indices. Their advice is to start with a combination which is odd against this interchange and again the Schwinger terms will be absent. In the general situation however the presence of the Schwinger terms must be allowed for.

#### IV. GETTING SOLUTIONS.

We return now to the problem of finding solutions of the infinite set of equations represented by an equal time current commutation relation - eq.(2). In general a complete solution of these equations is out of the question. Accordingly we must devise means of reducing the problem to tractable proportions. This means doing one of two things:

- (a) reducing the number of equations somehow to a finite number
- or (b) devising some method of calculating the sum over the infinite set of states on the left hand side of (2).

  Of these two approaches (a) is that adopted by Lee, Dashen

and Gell-Mann while (b) is the one followed by Fubini and Furlan.

## (a) The Lee-Dashen-Gell-Mann Procedure 4,5)

A considerable simplification of our problem results if we start from the commutation relations for the space integrals of the currents rather than those for the currents themselves. Thus if we define

$$I_{A}^{\alpha} = \int d^{3}x J_{A}^{\alpha}(x,t) \qquad (12)$$

then from (1), (assuming the other measurable operators are absent), we obtain for the  $I_A^{\ 0}$  the commutation relations

$$\begin{bmatrix} I_A^{\alpha}, I_B^{\beta} \end{bmatrix} = \sum_{C\gamma} K(A\alpha, B\beta; C\gamma) I_C^{\gamma}. \qquad (13)$$

These relations have the familiar look of the defining relations of a Lie algebra, such as those which we meet in connection with the ordinary space-time and internal symmetry groups. There is one important difference, however, and it is that, unlike the case of exact symmetry groups, the elements of this Lie algebra are not all time independent — only those which are the space integrals of the time components of divergenceless currents are. The time dependent elements do not commute with the Hamiltonian and so this is not the Lie algebra of an invariance group of the theory. In view of

this we must consider the integration in eq.(12) as being done in a chosen Lorentz frame and all succeeding operations with the algebra (13) are then performed in this same frame.

The I<sub>A</sub> are independent of the spatial coordinates and so they commute with the spatial momentum operators. This has the result that when deducing the consequences of eq.(13) by taking its matrix elements between physical states, it is necessary to consider only states of one fixed definite momentum. In eq.(2) on the other hand, a similar procedure would still require states of all spatial momentum to be included.

Lee, Dashen and Gell-Mann then made the assumption that the infinite set of equations got by taking the matrix elements of eq.(13) between all possible states may be approximated by setting all but a finite number of these matrix elements equal to zero, the non-zero elements being between single particle states only. It is to be hoped that the finite set of equations so obtained may yield a solution which is reasonably close to the exact one. A priori there is no way of judging how justified this approximation may be; however it would seem a reasonable hypothesis if the dominant matrix elements of a current are those between nearby states.

On the basis of the above approximation, if we denote by  $|i(p)\rangle$  i=1,2,...N the states between which the operators  $I_A^{\alpha}$  are assumed to have non-vanishing matrix elements (p is the spatial momentum) and the matrix element of the operator  $I_A^{\alpha}$  between two such states is written as

$$\langle j(p')| I_A^{\alpha}|i(p)\rangle = \delta^3(p-p') \left(\mathcal{G}_A^{\alpha}(p)\right)_{ji}$$

then the equations to be solved are

$$\sum_{j=i}^{N} \left( \mathcal{J}_{A}^{\alpha}(p) \right)_{ij} \left( \mathcal{J}_{B}^{\beta}(p) \right)_{jk} - \left( \mathcal{J}_{B}^{\beta}(p) \right)_{ij} \left( \mathcal{J}_{A}^{\alpha}(p) \right)_{jk} \right] \\
= \sum_{G\gamma} K(A\alpha, B\beta; C\gamma) \left( \mathcal{J}_{C}^{\gamma}(p) \right)_{ik}, \quad (14)$$

i,k = 1,2,... N.

From the relation (14) it is clear that the present procedure amounts to nothing other than finding finite dimensional representations of the Lie algebra defined by eq.(13). For if we can find a set of quantities  $\left(\mathcal{J}_{A}^{\alpha}(\mathbf{p})\right)_{ij}$ , i, j = 1,2,...N, which satisfy eq.(14), then we have found a set of finite NxN matrices which satisfy the same commutation relations as the  $I_{A}^{\alpha}$  and such a set of matrices is by definition a finite dimensional representation of the Lie algebra of the  $I_{A}^{\alpha}$ . This point was first noted by Okubo<sup>13)</sup> and in view of it it is easy to see why this procedure reproduces the higher

symmetry results insofar as they refer to the current oper-4,5) ators. For this purpose all one has to do is to select those currents whose space integrals satisfy the commutation relations of the relevant higher symmetry group (in Lee's case SU(6)) and then take the matrix elements of this Lie algebra using the states which constitute the basis of an appropriate representation of the group. The emergence of the higher symmetry results is then automatic.

There are two major difficulties with the above described procedure. The first is that the approximation assumption upon which it rests is strictly unjustified except in the trivial case when the Lie algebra, eq. (13), is that of an exact symmetry group of the underlying theory. Coleman has shown that if A is the space integral of a local operator Q(x,t) such that all matrix elements of the form <m A s>, where s> represents a single particle state and | m > a multiparticle one, vanish, then A commutes with the Hamiltonian. An assumption of this kind is an essential ingredient of the Lee-Dashen-Gell-Mann procedure and so this procedure is equivalent to assuming that the Lie algebra eq. (13) is that of an exact symmetry group. This means that strictly the method cannot be applied in cases where the Lie algebra (13) is that of a higher symmetry group which is not

an invariance group of the Hamiltonian. This is a serious blow.

In addition to this difficulty of principle it transpires that the method gives consistent results generally only for special values of the spatial momentum, such as zero spatial momentum or infinite spatial momentum  $^{14},15$ ). The reason for this is that the operators  $I_A^{\ \alpha}$  are not simply the generators of the Lie algebra eq.(13); they are also by definition tensor operators under the Poincaré group. In obtaining a "solution" of the Lie algebra therefore, we need to respect the Poincaré group properties of its generators. Now it is known that representations of the Poincaré group for finite non-zero spatial momentum are all infinite in dimension. Thus for finite non-zero momentum states it will in general be impossible to find a solution of the Lie algebra eq.(13) using only a finite number of states.

Despite these difficulties we feel that the present method as a general approach to higher symmetries is a valuable one. At least it is preferable to the ordinary one where one explicitly assumes the existence of a higher symmetry from the outset. Here one realises clearly that the higher symmetry results can at best be only approximate. This approach also enables one to treat the various representations of a higher symmetry group on a more or less equal footing, to distinguish clearly between

zero and non-zero momentum states and to discover the role of orbital angular momentum in higher symmetry groups 15).

An Example.

We consider a simple concrete example in order to illustrate this method. The space integrals of the axial vector isovector current  $A_{\bf i}^{\ \alpha}$ , the axial vector isoscalar current  $A_{\bf i}^{\ \alpha}$  and the vector isovector current  $V_{\bf i}^{\ \alpha}$  satisfy the commutation relations of the Lie algebra of the SU(4) group. The relation involving the commutator of the  $A_{\bf i}^{\ \alpha}$  with  $A_{\bf j}^{\ \beta}$  is

$$[A_{i}^{\alpha}, A_{j}^{\beta}] = i \delta_{ij} \epsilon_{\alpha\beta\gamma} V_{k}^{\gamma} + i \delta_{\alpha\beta} \epsilon_{ijk} A_{k}^{\circ},$$
 (15)

and there are similar expressions for the commutators of all other pairs of the set. We wish now to determine the matrix elements of these operators between zero momentum states of the nucleon. We denote these states by  $|\sigma,s\rangle$  s, $\sigma=1,2$  where  $\sigma$  is the isospin and s the ordinary spin index. By definition we have

$$< \sigma', s' | V_{L}^{\alpha} | \sigma, s > = u^{+}(\sigma', s') \frac{\tau_{\alpha}}{2} u(\sigma, s)$$
, (16)

$$\langle \sigma', s' | A_{\hat{1}}^{\alpha} | \sigma, s \rangle = g_{A} u^{\dagger}(\sigma', s') \sigma_{\hat{1}}^{\frac{\tau_{\alpha}}{2}} u(\sigma, s) , (17)$$

and

$$\langle \sigma', s' | A_{i}^{0} | \sigma_{s} \rangle = g u^{\dagger}(\sigma', s') \frac{\sigma_{i}}{2} u(\sigma, s)$$
 (18)

Here  $u(\sigma,s)$  is a constant spinor denoting zero momentum states of the nucleon and the above manner of writing the matrix elements is simply a concise way of writing the Wigner-Eckart theorem without introducing Clebsch-Gordan coefficients.  $g_A$  and g are reduced matrix elements and the fact that the reduced matrix element in (16) is unity is because the  $V_o^\alpha$  are the generators of the conserved isospin group.

We now take the matrix element of eq.(15) between zero momentum states of the nucleon and, in the sum over the complete set of states inserted on the left hand side, we retain only the contributions from these same nucleon states. Then with the definitions eqs.(16) to (18) we get

$$\varepsilon_{A}^{2} \sum_{\sigma^{"}s^{"}} \left[ u^{\dagger}(\sigma^{!}, s^{!}) \sigma_{i}^{\frac{\tau_{\alpha}}{2}} u(\sigma^{"}, s^{"}) u^{\dagger}(\sigma^{"}, s^{"}) \sigma_{j}^{\frac{\tau_{\beta}}{2}} u(\sigma, s) \right. \\
\left. - u^{\dagger}(\sigma^{!}, s^{!}) \sigma_{j}^{\frac{\tau_{\beta}}{2}} u(\sigma^{"}, s^{"}) u^{\dagger}(\sigma^{"}, s^{"}) \sigma_{i}^{\frac{\tau_{\alpha}}{2}} u(\sigma, s) \right] \\
= i\delta_{ij} \varepsilon_{\alpha\beta\gamma}^{u^{\dagger}(\sigma^{!}, s^{!}) \frac{\tau_{\gamma}}{2}} u(\sigma, s) + ig\delta_{\alpha\beta} \varepsilon_{ijk} u^{\dagger}(\sigma^{!}, s^{!}) \frac{\sigma_{k}}{2} u(\sigma, s). \tag{19}$$

Upon summing over o" and s" and using the identity

$$\sigma_{\mathbf{i}}\tau_{\alpha}\sigma_{\mathbf{j}}\tau_{\beta} - \sigma_{\mathbf{j}}\tau_{\beta}\sigma_{\mathbf{i}}\tau_{\alpha} = \frac{1}{2}\left\{\sigma_{\mathbf{i}},\sigma_{\mathbf{j}}\right\}\left[\tau_{\alpha}\tau_{\beta}\right] + \frac{1}{2}\left[\sigma_{\mathbf{i}},\sigma_{\mathbf{j}}\right]\left\{\tau_{\alpha},\tau_{\beta}\right\}$$

the left hand side of this equation becomes

$$g_A^2 u^+(\sigma^i,s^i) [i\delta_{ij} \epsilon_{\alpha\beta\gamma} \frac{\tau_{\gamma}}{2} + i\delta_{\alpha\beta} \epsilon_{ijk} \frac{\sigma_k}{2}] u(\sigma,s)$$
.

When we then compare the two sides we find the relations

$$g_A^2 = 1$$
,  $g_A^2 = g$ . (20)

These relations represent the "solution" by the Lee-Dashen-Gell-Mann procedure of the algebra of currents in the present instance.

Physically the quantity  $g_A$  is the strength of the axial vector isovector current between zero momentum nucleon states. This quantity can be measured in neutron  $\beta$ -decay and it is known that  $|g_A| = 1.18$ . (We assume that the bare axial vector constant is equal to the bare vector constant.) We might conclude from this and eq.(20) that our approximation procedure is quite good in this instance. This is a delusion. Our approximation is in fact quite bad because we know that the coupling of the nucleon to the N\*(1238) (3,3) resonance through the axial vector current is quite large (of the order of 0.6 to 0.8 in the above units) and yet we have neglected it completely.

From a mathematical viewpoint also our approximation proves to have quite drastic consequences. We notice that eq.(20) gives g=1 where g is the reduced matrix element of the operator  $A_i^0$  between nucleon states. Now this operator is, in the model we are using, the spin part of the angular momentum i.e. the total

angular momentum J; is given by

$$J_{i} = L_{i} * S_{i} , \qquad (21)$$

where  $L_i$  is the orbital angular momentum and  $S_i$  the spin angular momentum, is equal to  $A_i^{\ o}$ . Since the nucleon has spin  $\frac{1}{2}$  we have

$$\langle \sigma' s' | J_i | \sigma_s \rangle = u^+(\sigma', s') \frac{\sigma_i}{2} u(\sigma, s), (22)$$

and so from eq. (18) with g = 1 and eqs. (21) and (22) we find

In other words our approximation forces the nucleon to have orbital angular momentum equal to zero.

This is not, as it might appear, a trivial point. One might think, for instance, that since  $|\sigma,s\rangle$  represents a nucleon state at rest, its orbital angular momentum ought to be zero. However, in the present theory, a one-nucleon state is not necessarily a one-particle state; it is more likely to be a composite of three or more fundamental particles corresponding to some mixture of representations of  $SU_{I,S}(4)$ , the group which merges the spin and the isospin, and in that case the orbital angular momentum will not be zero.

Thus our method of solution has forced the zero momentum nucleon states, which at first constitute a (2,2) representation

of the group  $SU_1(2) \times R_3(J_i = L_i + S_i)$ , that is the direct product of the isospin group and the group of spatial rotations, to be a (2,2,1) representation of the group  $SU_T(2) \times SU_S(2) \times$ R3(Li) where SUS(2) is the spin angular momentum group and R3(L1) is the orbital angular momentum group. Even more, these states are forced to be a (4,1) representation of the group SU<sub>I.S</sub>(4) x R<sub>3</sub>(L<sub>i</sub>); this is seen from the fact that, in the approximation used, the sum of the squares of all 15 operators of the algebra is diagonal and a multiple of the unit matrix and since this sum is the first Casimir operator of the group SUI.S(4) it follows by Schur's lemma that the states used must constitute an irreducible representation of SUI.S(4). Hence, although we did not start out with any assumptions about SUI.S(4) invariance or multiplet structure, the approximation method employed imposes on the states used that they constitute a representation of the group SUI.S(4) x R3(Li).

This conclusion is not at all surprising. It is in fact simply a verification of the discussion given above after eq.(14). A situation such as it imposes will always be possible for zero momentum states provided only that the states chosen have the correct spin isospin complexion. It is clear, however, that this kind of circumstance can at best be only an approximation to the real one; for zero momentum states, while they are

eigen-states of the total angular momentum, are not generally eigen-states of the orbital and spin angular momenta separately.

From this example one sees how the current algebra approach works in conjunction with the Lee-Dashen-Gell-Mann procedure.

The limitations of the approximation are clearly seen and it is to overcome these limitations that we turn now to a second technique.

(b) The Fubini-Furlan Technique.

The essential difference between the Fubini-Furlan technique and that outlined above is that the former does not truncate the sum over the complete set of states on the left hand side of eq. (2) but rather expresses it in terms of physically accessible quantities, namely integrals over cross-sections or known matrix elements. The method is analogous to that used by some authors to calculate electromagnetic mass differences 17) and is as follows.

One begins, as above, from the integrated form of the commutation relations, eq.(13). One then takes those relations where

$$(i) I_B^{\beta} = (I_A^{\alpha})^{+},$$

(ii) IA is the space integral of the time component of a current

$$I_A^{\alpha} = \int d^3x J_{4A}^{\alpha}(x,t) ,$$

(iii) the divergence of  $J_{\mu A}^{\ \alpha}$  is a measurable local operator

 $\partial_{\mu} J_{\mu A}^{\alpha}(x,t) = k O_{A}^{\alpha}(x)$ , k a constant

and

(iv) the two states between which one takes the matrix element of the commutation relation are one and the same.

One sees that this method has a more restricted range of application than the previous one (because of the requirements (i) to (iv)) but it is much more satisfactory because it is much more exact.

Using (i) and (iv) above, we see that on this occasion our matrix element equation is

$$\sum_{\mathbf{j}(p^{n})} \langle i(p^{n}) | I_{\underline{A}}^{\alpha} | j(p^{n}) \rangle \langle j(p^{n}) | (I_{\underline{A}}^{\alpha})^{+} | i(p) \rangle \\
- \langle i(p^{n}) | (I_{\underline{A}}^{\alpha})^{+} | j(p^{n}) \rangle \langle j(p^{n}) | I_{\underline{A}}^{\alpha} | i(p) \rangle \\
= \sum_{\mathbf{C}_{Y}} K(\underline{A}\alpha, (\underline{A}\alpha)^{+}; \underline{C}\gamma) \langle i(p^{n}) | I_{\underline{C}}^{\gamma} | i(p) \rangle .$$
(23)

In this equation the matrix element on the right hand side is always known exactly because, on account of the way  $I_A^{\alpha}$  and  $I_B^{\beta}$  were chosen [condition (i) above], the operator  $I_C^{\gamma}$  turns out to be either the charge, the baryon number or the

This side of the equation poses no problems therefore. On the left hand side the sum over the states  $\{j(p^n)\}$  will usually receive contributions from one or more single particle states—we call these discrete states—and then from two or more particle states—we call these the continuum states because the mass of such states has a continuum of values. For simplicity we assume that there is only one discrete state contributing and we call it  $j_D(p^n)$ . We next separate the contribution of this state from that of the continuum states and this latter is then expressed as an integral over certain cross sections or known matrix elements. The net result is that eq.(23) becomes a sum rule for the matrix element of  $I_A$  between the state  $|j_D(p^n)\rangle$  and the discrete state  $|j_D(p^n)\rangle$ .

We remark here that the continuum contribution to the sum rule thus obtained has a straightforward interpretation in terms of broken symmetry ideas. If the algebra of the  $I_A^{\alpha}$  were the Lie algebra of an exact symmetry group the  $I_A^{\alpha}$  would all commute with the Hamiltonian; this would have the result that all matrix elements between single particle and multiparticle states would vanish and so the continuum contribution to the above sum rule would vanish. This continuum contribution is therefore a measure of the amount by which the

8.748 1

symmetry, represented by the algebra of the  $I_A^{\alpha}$ , is broken.

In order to calculate this continuum contribution we begin by considering the matrix element of  $I_A^{\alpha}$  between the state  $|i(p)\rangle$  and a general continuum state  $|j_C(p^*)\rangle$ . In view of the specification of the  $I_A^{\alpha}$  given above [condition (ii)] we have

$$< j_{C}(p')|I_{A}^{\alpha}|i(p)> = < j_{C}(p)|\int J_{4A}^{\alpha}(x,t) d^{3}x|i(p)>$$
,

which, upon using the relations

$$i \dot{I}_A^{\alpha} = [I_A^{\alpha}, H]$$
, [H is the Hamiltonian]

and

$$i\dot{I}_{A}^{\alpha} = -\int d^{3}x \frac{\partial J_{4A}^{\alpha}}{\partial x_{4}} = -\int d^{3}x \partial_{\mu} J_{\mu A}^{\alpha}(x,t) ,$$

we can write

$$< j_{C}(p') | I_{A}^{\alpha} | i(p)> = \frac{< j_{C}(p') | \int d^{3}x \partial_{\mu} J_{\mu A}^{\alpha}(x,t) | i(p)>}{E_{j_{C}} - E_{i}},$$

where E<sub>jC</sub> and E<sub>i</sub> are the energies of the states | j<sub>C</sub>(p) > |i(p) > respectively. (In cases where the continuum states are not separated from the discrete ones because of the presense of massless particles - photons - the denominator on the right hand side of eq.(24) may need to be defined more carefully; we shall ignore this difficulty in the interests of simplicity.) One sees clearly that the "inelastic" matrix

elements vanish when the current  $J_{\mu A}^{\ \alpha}(x,t)$  is divergenceless. When  $J_{\mu A}^{\ \alpha}(x,t)$  is not divergenceless we replace its divergence by  $k \ 0_A^{\ \alpha}(x,t)$  in accordance with condition (iv) above and since this is assumed to be a known local operator its matrix elements can be inserted in the sum rule to deduce the value of the matrix element  $< j_D(p^*) | I_A^{\ \alpha} | j(p) > .$ 

The most immediate application of the foregoing is in the case when the currents in question are members of the octets of vector and axial vector currents which arise in connection with the unitary symmetry SU(3). Since this symmetry is not exact the divergences of the vector currents are not all zero and one does not expect the axial vector currents to vanish anyway. In each case it is possible to give an expression for  $\partial_{\mu} J_{\mu A}^{\ \alpha}$  in terms of other measurable local operators and so we can apply the above theory. The relevant expressions for  $\partial_{\mu} J_{\mu A}^{\ \alpha}(x,t)$  are as follows:

1.  $J_{\mu A}^{\alpha}(x,t) = V_{\mu}^{o(\frac{1}{2})}(x,t)$ , the strangeness conserving vector current,  $\partial_{\mu} V_{\mu}^{o(\frac{1}{2})}(x,t) = \pm i e A_{\mu}(x) V_{\mu}^{o(\frac{1}{2})}(x,t)$ , A(x) the electromagnetic field;

2.  $J_{\mu A}^{\alpha}(x,t) = V_{\mu}^{1(\pm)}(x,t)$ , the strangeness changing vector current,  $\partial_{\mu} V_{\mu}^{1(\pm)}(x,t) = c_{\kappa} \kappa^{(\pm)}(x)$ , where  $\kappa^{(\pm)}(x)$  is the kappa field and  $c_{\kappa}$  its leptonic decay constant;

- 3.  $J_{\mu A}^{\alpha}(x,t) = A_{\mu}^{o(\frac{t}{2})}(x,t)$ , the strangeness conserving axial vector current,  $\partial_{\mu} A_{\mu}^{o(\frac{t}{2})}(x,t) = c_{\pi} \pi^{(\frac{t}{2})}(x,t)$  where  $\pi^{(\frac{t}{2})}(x,t)$  is the pion field and  $c_{\pi}$  the pion decay constant;
- 4.  $J_{\mu A}^{\alpha}(x,t) = A_{\mu}^{1(\frac{1}{2})}(x,t)$ , the strangeness changing axial vector current,  $\partial_{\mu} A^{1(\frac{1}{2})}(x,t) = c_{K} K^{(\frac{1}{2})}(x,t)$  where  $K^{(\frac{1}{2})}(x,t)$  is the kaon field and  $c_{K}$  the  $K_{l_{2}}$  decay constant.

These expressions for the divergences enable us to compute the contribution of the continuum terms in a manner which we shall now illustrate. There is no need to take these relations literally as operator relations which arise from an underlying field theory; rather, they should be thought of as definitions of the respective fields in accordance with the Haag-Nishijima theorem 18).

As an example we take the case when  $J_{\mu A}^{\ \alpha}(x,t)$  is the strangeness conserving axial vector current to illustrate how the present method works.

# An Example: The Adler-Weisberger calculation.

On choosing  $I_A^{\alpha} = \int A_4(x,t) d^3x = Q_5^+$  our commutation relation becomes

$$\left[ Q_{5}^{+}, Q_{5}^{-} \right] = 2 I_{3} , \qquad (25)$$

where  $I_3$  is the third component of isospin. Taking the matrix element of this relation between the proton states  $|P_s(p)\rangle$  and  $|P_s(p')\rangle - s$  and s' being spin indices and p and p' the momenta - we obtain for the right hand side the expression  $\delta_{s's}\delta^3(p'-p)$ ; the first term on the left hand side receives a contribution from neutron states and with the definition

$$< N_{s'}(p') | Q_5^- | P_s(p) > = \delta^3(p'-p) g_A \frac{M}{E_p} (s')(p') \gamma_4 \gamma_5 u_P^{(s)}(p)$$

this contribution is equal to

$$\delta_{s's} \delta^{3}(p'-p) g_{A}^{2}(1-\frac{M^{2}}{E_{p}^{2}})$$

M being the nucleon mass and  $E_p$  its energy. Then if we denote by  $|\alpha(p")\rangle$  a generic continuum state contributing to the sum rule we have

$$\delta_{s's} \delta^{3}(p'-p) = g_{A}^{2}(1 - \frac{M^{2}}{E^{2}}) \delta_{s's} \delta^{3}(p'-p)$$

$$+ \sum_{\alpha(p'')} \left[ \langle P_{s'}(p') | Q_{5}^{+} | \alpha(p'') \rangle \langle \alpha(p'') | Q_{5}^{-} | P_{s}(p) \rangle - Q_{5}^{+} \leftrightarrow Q_{5}^{-} \right].$$
(26)

Now using eq.(24) with  $I_A^{\alpha} = Q_5^{+}$  and the partially conserved axial current relation

$$\partial_{\mu} A_{\mu}^{\circ(\pm)}(x,t) = c_{\pi} \pi^{\pm}(x,t)$$
, (27)

we find

$$<\alpha(p'')|Q_5^{\pm}|P_s(p)> = \frac{c_{\pi}}{E_{\alpha}-E_p}<\alpha(p'')|\int_{\pi^{\pm}(x,0)}d^3x|P_s(p)>,$$

and a little manipulation with the right hand side here yields

$$= \frac{c_{\pi}}{(E_{\alpha} - E_{p})^{2} - m_{\pi}^{2}} \frac{(2\pi)^{3} \delta^{3}(p^{n} - p)}{(E_{\alpha} - E_{p})} < \alpha(p^{n}) | J_{\pi}^{+}(0) | P_{s}(p) > ,$$
(28)

where  $J_{\pi}^{+}(x)$  is the pion current defined by the relation

$$J_{\pi}^{+}(x) = (\Box - m_{\pi}^{2}) \pi^{+}(x)$$
.

Next we write the summation  $\Sigma$  in eq.(26) as  $\alpha(p^n)$ 

$$\sum_{\alpha(p'')} = \int d^{3}p'' \int dW \sum_{\alpha \text{int}} \delta(W - M_{\alpha}) , \qquad (29)$$

where  $\alpha$  denotes summation over the internal variables of int the state  $\alpha$ , W is its total energy in the centre of mass system and M $_{\alpha}$  is its mass. [Notice from eq.(28) the spatial momentum of  $\alpha$  is equal to that of the proton state  $P_s(p)$ ]. Then on setting s = s' in eq.(26) and taking  $\frac{1}{2}\Sigma$  we obtain, using eqs.(28) and (29)

$$1 = g_A^2 \left(1 - \frac{M^2}{E_p^2}\right) + \int dW \sum_{\alpha \text{ int}} \delta(W - M_{\alpha}) \frac{e_{\pi}^2}{\left[\left(E_{\alpha} - E_p\right)^2 - m_{\pi}^2\right]^2} \frac{(2\pi)^6}{\left(E_{\alpha} - E_p\right)^2}$$

$$x \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s} \left[ |\langle \alpha(p) | J_{\pi}(0) | P_{s}(p) \rangle|^{2} - |\langle \alpha(p) | J_{\pi}(0) | P_{s}(p) \rangle|^{2} \right]$$
(30)

Quantities  $F_{\alpha s}^{\phantom{\alpha s}}$  and  $K^{\pm}$  are now defined by the relations

$$<\alpha (p) | J_{\pi}^{+}(0) | P_{s}(p) > = \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{3}} \left( \frac{M}{E_{p}} \frac{M}{E_{\alpha}} \alpha \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} F_{\alpha s}^{+}, \quad (31,a)$$

and

$$\frac{1}{2} \sum_{s} \sum_{\alpha \text{ int}} \delta(W - M_{\alpha}) | F_{\alpha s}^{+} |^{2} = K^{+} [W, (p_{\alpha} - p)^{2}], \quad (31,b)$$

where  $p_{\alpha}$  is the four momentum of the state  $\alpha - p_{\alpha} = (\vec{p}, \vec{E}_{\alpha})$ . Then eq.(30) takes the concise form

$$1 = g_{A}^{2} \left(1 - \frac{M^{2}}{E_{p}^{2}}\right)$$

$$+ \int dW \frac{\frac{e_{\pi}^{2}}{\pi^{2}}}{\left[\left(E_{\alpha} - E_{p}^{2}\right)^{2} - m_{\pi}^{2}\right]^{2}} \frac{1}{\left(E_{\alpha} - E_{p}^{2}\right)^{2}} \frac{MW}{E_{p}E_{\alpha}} \left[K^{-}[W,(p_{\alpha} - p)^{2}]\right]$$

$$- K^{+}[W,(p_{\alpha} - p)^{2}] . (32)$$

This relation is to be looked upon as a sum rule for the quantity  $g_{\Lambda}$  .

In order to evaluate this sum rule we need to relate the quantities  $K^{+} [W, (p_{\alpha} - p)^{2}]$  to some known functions. This is done as follows. The total cross sections for  $\pi^{+}$ -proton scattering are given by

$$\sigma^{\pm}(W) \times \text{flux} = (2\pi)^{\frac{10_{1}}{2}} \sum_{s} \sum_{\alpha} \frac{|\langle \alpha(p_{\alpha})| J_{\pi}^{\pm}(0)| P_{s}(p) \rangle|^{2}}{(2\pi)^{\frac{3}{2}} 2 k_{o}} \delta^{\pm}(p+k-p_{\alpha})$$

$$= \frac{\pi}{k_{o}} (2\pi)^{\frac{6_{1}}{2}} \sum_{s} \sum_{\alpha} |\langle \alpha(p_{\alpha})| J_{\pi}^{\pm}(0)| P_{s}(p) \rangle|^{2} \delta(E+k_{o}-E_{\alpha})$$

$$= \frac{\pi}{k_{o}} \frac{M}{E_{p}} K^{\pm}(W, -m_{\pi}^{2}) , \qquad (33)$$

this last line coming from a specialisation to the centre of momentum system so that  $E_p + k = W$ ,  $E_\alpha = M_\alpha$ . Since in this system the flux is

while

$$k_0 = \frac{1}{2W} (W^2 + m_{\pi}^2 - M^2)$$
,

we obtain for  $K^{+}(W, -m_{\pi}^{2})$  the expression

$$K^{\pm}[W, -m_{\pi}^{2}] = \frac{\sqrt{k_{o}^{2} - m_{\pi}^{2}W}}{\pi M} \sigma^{\pm}(W)$$
 (34)

Thus when the second invariant variable  $(p_{\alpha}-p)^2$  takes on the value  $-m_{\pi}^2$  the functions  $K^{\pm}[W,(p_{\alpha}-p)^2]$  in (32) are simply related to the total  $\pi^{\pm}-p$  cross-sections. In order to use this information it is necessary to devise some means of making  $(p_{\alpha}-p)^2$  equal to  $-m_{\pi}^2$  in eq.(32). This turns out not to be possible, for on account of the way that sum rule was derived we have  $(p_{\alpha}-p)^2=-(E_p-E_{\alpha})^2=-(\sqrt{p^2+M^2}-\sqrt{p^2+W^2})^2$  and this cannot take on the fixed value  $-m_{\pi}^2$ , because p is fixed but W ranges over all values from  $M+m_{\pi}$  to infinity in the course of the integration.

But if  $(p_{\alpha}-p)^2$  cannot be made to take on its physical value  $-m_{\pi}^2$  it can be made to take on the fairly nearby value

of 0. This is because the quantity p is a parameter in our sum rule and may be set to any value we wish. From the above expressions for  $(p_{\alpha}-p)^2$  we see that when  $p \to \infty$  this quantity becomes zero. If we now take the lim.  $p \to \infty$  in the sum rule, eq.(32), assume that this limiting process can be interchanged with the integration over W and use the relation

$$(E_{\alpha} - E_{p})^{2} = \frac{(M_{\alpha}^{2} - M^{2})^{2}}{(E_{\alpha} + E_{p})^{2}} = \frac{(W^{2} - M^{2})^{2}}{(E_{\alpha} + E_{p})^{2}},$$

we find

$$1 = g_A^2 + \left(\frac{c_{\pi}}{m_2^2}\right)^2 \int dW \frac{\Delta MW}{(W^2 - M^2)} [K^-(W,0) - K^+(W,0)], \quad (35)$$

and so, using (34)

$$1 = g_A^2 + \frac{2}{\pi} \left( \frac{c_{\pi}}{m_{\pi}^2} \right) \int dW \frac{W}{W^2 - M^2} \left[ \sigma_0^{-}(W) - \sigma_0^{+}(W) \right] , \quad (36)$$

where  $\sigma_0^+(W)$  is the  $\pi^+-p$  total cross-section for zero mass pions. Eq.(36) is the Adler-Weisberger sum rule 9a,b

The constant  $\frac{c_{\pi}}{m}$  appearing in eq.(36) can be obtained

from the  $\pi_{l_2}$  decay rate  $\Gamma_{l_2}$  . Because of the PCAC assumption, eq.(27),

$$\Gamma_{l_{2}}^{\pi} = \left(\frac{c_{\pi}}{m_{\pi}^{2}}\right)^{2} \frac{G_{A}^{2} m_{l}^{2} m_{\pi}}{8\pi} \left(1 - \frac{m_{l}^{2}}{m_{\pi}^{2}}\right)^{2}, \qquad (37)$$

where  $m_l$  denotes the mass of the lepton  $(m_{\mu} \text{ or } m_e)$  and  $G_A^0$  is the bare coupling constant of the strangeness conserving axial vector current. From the value  $\Gamma_{\mu_2}^{\pi}=3.84\times 10^7$  sec.  $^{-1}$  19) we find

$$\left(\frac{c_{\pi}}{m_{\pi}^{2}}\right)^{2} G_{A}^{2} = 1.969 \times 10^{-12} M^{-2} , \qquad (38)$$

M being the nucleon mass.

The integral over the total cross sections has been computed by Adler and Weisberger. They find 9a,b)

$$\int dW \frac{W}{W^2 - M^2} \left[ \sigma_0^{-}(W) - \sigma_0^{+}(W) \right] = -37.01 \frac{1}{M^2} \text{ (Weisberger)},$$

$$= -50.33 \frac{1}{M^2} \text{ (Adler)}, (39b)$$

the difference coming from the fact that Adler made certain corrections for the continuation in the pion mass. On substituting eqs.(38) and (39) into eq.(36) we obtain

$$G_A^{\circ 2} - (G_A^{\circ} g_A^{\circ})^2 = -0.729 \times 10^{-10} \frac{1}{M^2}$$
 (Weisberger), (40a)  
= -0.991 x 10<sup>-10</sup>  $\frac{1}{M^2}$  (Adler). (40b)

The quantity  $G_A^{\ o}$   $g_A^{\ appearing}$  here is nothing but the observed (renormalized) axial vector coupling constant for neutron decay.

Experimentally its value is

$$G_A = G_A^0 g_A = -1.18 G_V(n \rightarrow p) 20$$
, (41)

with 
$$G_{V}(n \rightarrow p) = 1.0045 \frac{10^{-5}}{M^2}$$
 (42)

Eqs.(40),(41) and (42) then yield the result

$$|G_A^{\circ}| = 0.82 \times \frac{10^{-5}}{M^2}$$
 (Weisberger), (43a)

$$= 0.64 \times \frac{10^{-5}}{M^2} \qquad \text{(Adler)} . \tag{43b}$$

to be compared with the experimental value 1.18.

[The present treatment differs from that of Adler and Weisberger in that these authors express the quantity  $e_{\pi}/e_{\pi}^2$  in terms of  $g_A$  and the strong pion-nucleon coupling constant  $g_{\pi N}$  ( $g_{\pi N}^L$  /  $g_{\pi N}$  = 14.6) by means of the Goldberger - Treiman relation  $g_{\pi N}$ 

$$\frac{c_{\pi}}{m} = -\frac{2 g_{A} M}{g_{\pi}} \qquad (45)$$

We have chosen not to do this as we believe that the pion decay rate gives a more direct measure of this constant. If we had used eq.(45) we would have found

This, then, is an example of the Fubini-Furlan technique in action. It is seen that at least in the present case current commutation relations, when applied without drastic approximations can yield answers in good agreement with experiment.

The Adler-Weisberger relation: some comments.

While the broad outlines of the foregoing discussion are generally satisfactory, there are at least two points of detail which one might consider in need of further examination. These are the questions (1) of taking the limit  $p \to \infty$  and (2) of extrapolating to zero pion mass.

(1) The first problem concerning the infinite momentum limit is whether the limit  $p \to \infty$  can be interchanged with the integration over W in eq.(32). The answer is that it can if the integral is uniformly convergent. Unfortunately we are not in a position to say whether this is in fact the case. The resulting integral is of course convergent if the Pomeranchuk theorem is valid but this alone does not justify the interchange. Adler has shown, however, that the assumption that this interchange is justified is equivalent to the assumption that a certain pion-nucleon scattering amplitude continued to zero piom mass obeys an unsubtracted dispersion relation and it seems almost certain that this latter assumption is correct. Thus interchanging the limit  $p \to \infty$  and the integration over W is almost certainly allowed.

With regard to the limit  $p \to \infty$  itself, we recall that our sole purpose in taking it was so as to be able to express our sum rule eq.(32) in terms of integrals over  $\pi^{\pm}$  - p total cross-sections; the  $p \to \infty$  limit is therefore a strategic device. There have been a number of attempts, notably by Fubini and Furlan<sup>7)</sup> and Dashen and Gell-Mann, to raise this  $p \to \infty$  limit almost to the rank of a principle; at the moment, however, it seems best to regard this limit as a question of strategy rather than of principle.

Another aspect of the infinite momentum limit is that it has been shown  $^{24}$  that the chiral SU(2) x SU(2) algebra upon which the Adler-Weisberger calculation rests [see eq.(25)], is equivalent to the algebra of the collinear SU(2) x SU(2) group when operating on single particle states of infinite momentum. This fact explains how these two apparently different groups give the same results in the limit of infinite momentum states and it has also been used to interpret the physical values of the axial vector coupling constant and the magnetic moments, as indications that the infinite momentum, nucleon states constitute a definite mixture of irreducible representations of collinear SU(2) x SU(2).  $^{25}$ 

(2) As we have seen, the Adler-Weisberger sum rule gives the strangeness conserving axial vector renormalization in terms of integrals of total cross-sections for  $\pi^{\pm}$  - p scattering where the mass of the external pion has been continued to zero. How this continuation affects the cross-sections is something we cannot know; the effect is assumed to be small and certain model calculations support this view but ultimately we have no real proofs one way or the other.

In view of this we might now raise the following question.

The above calculation does not assume that the pion mass is
zero and the zero pion mass limit arises simply from putting

equal to zero the invariant square of the momentum transfer  $(p-p_{\alpha})^2$  which normally is equal to  $-m_{\pi}^2$ . But what if the pion mass were actually zero? Would we then have an exact sum rule? Initially this idea runs into difficulties, for if we set  $m_{\pi}$  equal to zero everywhere in eq.(36) the second term on the right hand side becomes infinite. However, this difficulty is spurious rather than real because when the pion mass is exactly zero one cannot use the PCAC relation eq.(27), and so the above method of deriving the sum rule is inapplicable. On the other hand it is possible in the zero mass case to postulate instead of eq.(27) the relation

$$\partial_{\mu} A_{\mu}^{0+}(x) = d_{\pi} j_{\pi}^{+}(x)$$
, (47)

where  $j_{\pi}^{\pm}(x)$  is the pion current. (You can get this relation in a gradient coupling model, for example, though it should be remarked that it seems difficult to get the required current commutation relations in the same model.) With this relation a procedure analogous to the above yields again the sum rule eq.(36) with  $c_{\pi}/m_{\pi}^2$  replaced by  $d_{\pi}$  and furthermore the sum rule yields the same value of  $|g_A|$  as before, for due to the Goldberger - Treiman relation , eq.(45),  $d_{\pi}$  is numerically equal to  $c_{\pi}/m_{\pi}^2$ . Thus the answer to our question is that the Adler-Weisberger sum rule would be exact in a

world with pions having zero mass, provided that the relations given in eq.(47) were valid.

### V. OTHER APPLICATIONS.

Applications of the current algebra approach are now very numerous and only a selection can be referred to here. For those applications which use the Lee-Dashen-Gell-Mann procedure to deduce strengths of currents, magnetic moments and mass relations the reader is referred to references and the papers cited therein. The "goodness" of these results varies widely. Applications which employ the Fubini-Furlan technique seem on the other hand to yield better results. We now discuss some of the latter.

(a) Renormalization of Strangeness Changing Axial Current.

In order to explain the importance of the calculation of the renormalization of the strangeness changing axial current we recall that the weak interaction Lagrangian for semileptonic processes is given by

$$\frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \left[ G_{V}^{\circ} V_{\mu}^{\circ(+)} + G_{A}^{\circ} A_{\mu}^{\circ(+)} + G_{V}^{1} V_{\mu}^{1} + G_{A}^{1} A_{\mu}^{1} \right] l_{\mu} + \text{h.c.}$$
(48)

Here  $V_{\mu}^{o(+)}(V_{\mu}^{1(+)})$  is the positively charged strangeness conserving (strangeness changing) vector current and  $C_{V}^{o}(C_{V}^{1})$ 

is its bare coupling constant;  $A_{\mu}^{o(+)}(A_{\mu}^{(+)})$  is the positively charged strangeness conserving (strangeness changing) axial vector current and  $G_{A}^{o}(G_{A}^{1})$  is its bare coupling constant and  $l_{\mu}$  is the usual weak current of leptons,

$$l_{\mu} = \bar{e}(x) \gamma_{\mu} (1 + \gamma_5) \nu_{e}(x) + \bar{\mu}(x) \gamma_{\mu} (1 + \gamma_5) \nu_{\mu}(x)$$
.

As a result of the Adler-Weisberger calculation it is now possible to equate  $G_V^{\ \ 0}$  and  $G_A^{\ \ 0}$  as explained above. We would next like to make a similar analysis in the case of  $G_V^{\ 1}$  and  $G_A^{\ 1}$ . With regard to these constants it was first hoped that all G's in (48) could be chosen equal – this was known as the universal Fermi interaction. However, when that theory is applied in a straightforward fashion (neglecting all renormalization effects) the rates for the leptonic decays of strange particles come out about twenty times too large on the average; the effective coupling constants for these decays must therefore be much smaller than  $G_V^{\ 0}$  — of the order of  $\frac{1}{5}$   $G_V^{\ 0}$  or so. The problem is now to decide whence comes this diminution of the effective strangeness changing coupling constants:

- (a) Is it due solely to strong interaction renormalization effects with the bare constants chosen equal to those for strangeness conserving processes? or
  - (b) Does the diminution arise primarily because the bare

strangeness coupling constants are much smaller than their strangeness conserving counterparts with strong interaction renormalization effects playing only a minor role ?

The alternative (b) is that adopted by Cabibbo 27) in his theory of weak interactions. He postulated a weak interaction of the form (48) with

$$G_{\mathbf{V}}^{\circ} = G_{\mathbf{A}}^{\circ} = G \cos \theta$$
;  $G_{\mathbf{V}}^{\dagger} = G_{\mathbf{A}}^{\dagger} = G \sin \theta$ ,

$$\tan \theta \simeq 0.26$$

a good account of semileptonic decays 28). Let us now examine the consistency of alternative (a) using the algebra of currents.

We begin by defining the operators S5 as

$$s_5^{\pm} = \int d^3x \, A_4^{1(\pm)}(x) \,. \tag{49}$$

 $S_5^{\pm}$  are the analogues of  $Q_5^{\pm}$  introduced in eq.(25);  $S_5^{\pm}$  and  $S_5^{-}$  are assumed to satisfy the commutation relation

$$[s_5^+, s_5^-] = Y + Q$$
, (50)

where Y is the hypercharge and Q the electric charge.

(We abstract this relation from the quark model.) We now take the matrix element of this relation between single

neutron states, notice that the only single particle contribution on the left hand side comes from the  $\Sigma^-$  state, use the PCAC relation

$$\partial_{\mu} A_{\mu}^{1(\pm)}(x) = e_{K} K^{\pm}(x)$$
, (51)

where  $K^{+}(x)$  is the kaon field operator and generally proceed precisely as in the Adler-Weisberger calculation. The result is the sum rule 29)

$$g_{A}^{2}(\Sigma \to n) = 1 + \frac{2}{\pi} \left(\frac{c_{K}}{m_{K}^{2}}\right)^{2} \int dW \frac{W}{W^{2} - M^{2}} \left[\sigma_{o}^{K^{+}n}(W) - \sigma_{o}^{K^{-}n}(W)\right],$$
(52)

where notation is similar to that used in the Adler-Weisberger sum rule. In principle this relation enables us to compute  $G_A^{\ 1}$ , the bare strangeness changing axial vector coupling constant.

From  $K_{\mu_2}$  decay we obtain for  $(c_K/m_K^2)^2$  the relation  $\left(\frac{c_K}{m_K^2}\right)^2 = \frac{\Gamma(K \Rightarrow \mu + \overline{\nu}_{\mu})}{\frac{1}{8\pi}(G_A^{1})^2 m_K m_{\mu}^2 (1 - \frac{m_{\mu}^2}{m_K^2})^2},$ 

where  $\Gamma(K \rightarrow \mu + \overline{\nu}_{\mu})$  is the  $K_{\mu_2}$  decay rate. On inserting for this quantity the experimental value  $\Gamma_{\rm expt}(K \rightarrow \mu + \overline{\nu}_{\mu})$  = 5.11 x 10<sup>7</sup> sec. <sup>-1</sup>, we find

$$\frac{2}{\pi} \left(\frac{c_K}{m_K^2}\right)^2 (G_A^{1})^2 = \frac{0.945}{M^2} \times 10^{-12}$$
, M = proton mass,

whereupon the sum rule in eq.(52) multiplied by  $(G_A^{1})^2$  becomes

$$[G_{A}^{1} g_{\underline{A}}(\Sigma \to n)]^{2} = (G_{A}^{1})^{2} + \frac{0.945 \times 10^{-12}}{M^{2}} \int_{\underline{W}^{2} - \underline{M}^{2}}^{\underline{W} d\underline{W}} [\sigma_{0}^{K^{+} n} (\underline{W})] - \sigma_{0}^{K^{-} n} (\underline{W})]. \quad (53)$$

The evaluation of the integral in this relation is beset with difficulties. In the first place the cross-sections, since they involve neutrons, are not very well known. Secondly, the continuation of the mass of the external kaon to zero is likely to have more serious consequences than did the similar continuation of the pion mass in the previous calculation. Lastly, the sum rule this time receives contributions from the I=1, Y=0,  $\Sigma\pi$  and  $\Lambda\pi$  states below threshold and these contributions have to be included in some way, (by putting in the  $Y_1^*$ (1405) resonance for example). In view of these uncertainties we are unlikely to obtain very accurate information from the present relation.

Estimates of this integral are available in the work of a number of authors. These are

$$\int \frac{W \, dW}{W^2 - M^2} \left[ \sigma_0^{K^+ n} (W) - \sigma_0^{K^- n} (W) \right] = -23 \, \text{mb}$$

$$= -22.5 \, \text{mb}$$

$$= -34 \, \text{mb}^{30}$$

On using these values in eq. (53) together with the relation

1 mb = 
$$\frac{2.28}{M^2}$$
, (M = proton mass)

we find for  $G_A^{12}$  the equations

$$(G_A^{1})^2 = [G_A^2 g_A(\Sigma^- \to n)]^2 + \frac{10^{-10}}{M^4} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 0.49 \\ 0.48 \\ 0.73 \end{array} \right\}.$$
 (54)

Now the decay rate for  $\Sigma \to n + e^- + \nu_e^-$  as computed from the weak interaction given in eq.(48) is

$$\Gamma(\Sigma \to n + e^{-} + \overline{\nu}_{e}) = 3.27 \times 10^{18} \text{ M}^{4} \{1.03 [G_{V}^{1} g_{V} (\Sigma \to n)]^{2} + 3.04 [G_{A}^{1} g_{A} (\Sigma \to n)]^{2} \} \text{ sec}^{-1} (55)$$

where  $g_V(\Sigma \to n)$  is the renormalization factor for the vector current and the various numbers appearing are the phase space factors. The experimental decay rate is 34)

$$\Gamma_{\text{expt}} (\Sigma \to n + e^- + \overline{\nu}_e) = 8.075 \times 10^6 \text{ sec}^{-1}$$
,

from which we deduce the inequality

$$[G_A^2 g_A(\Sigma \to n)]^2 M^4 \le 0.81 \times 10^{-12}$$
.

Consequently we obtain for  $G_A^{-1}$ , the bare coupling constant for the strangeness changing axial current, the upper limit

$$(G_A^2)^2 M^4 \le \left[ \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 0.49 \\ 0.48 \\ 0.73 \end{array} \right\} + 0.0081 \right] \times 10^{-10} . \quad (56)$$

The outcome of this calculation is then the following: since the bare strangeness conserving vector coupling constant  $G_{V}$  has a value of about 1 x 10<sup>-5</sup> M<sup>-2</sup>, it is scarcely possible to maintain the equality of all bare coupling constants in the weak interaction Lagrangian eq. (48). This conclusion is predicated on the assumption that all the ingredients of the above calculation (algebra of currents and PCAC) are correct and also that the uncertainties in the evaluation of the sum rule are not large. This is, of course, a lot to assume. However, one can say that the indications are that the bare coupling constants for strangeness changing semileptonic decays are smaller than their strangeness conserving counterparts, but the amount of the diminution (i.e. the magnitude of the bare Cabibbo angle) cannot be stated with any degree of confidence.

# (b) Pion-Pion and Pion-Kaon Scattering.

The commutation relations given in eqs.(25) and (50) if valid should yield information about  $\pi - \pi$  and  $K - \pi$  scattering. If, for example, one takes the relation (25) between  $\pi^{+}$  states and uses the Fubini-Furlan-Adler-Weisberger (FFAW) technique, one finds the sum rule

$$2 = \frac{2}{\pi} \left(\frac{c_{\pi}}{m_{\pi}^{2}}\right)^{2} \int_{w}^{w} \frac{dw}{2} \left[\sigma_{o}^{\pi \pi^{+}}(w) - \sigma_{o}^{\pi^{+}\pi^{+}}(w)\right]$$
 (57)

while the same relation taken between K+ states leads to the sum rule

$$1 = \frac{2}{\pi} \left( \frac{c_{\pi}}{m_{K}^{2}} \right)^{2} \int_{W_{i}-M_{K}}^{W} dw \left[ \sigma_{o}^{\pi K^{+}}(w) - \sigma_{o}^{\pi^{+}K^{+}}(w) \right] . \quad (58)$$

Now although there is no direct pion-pion or kaon-pion scattering data available there is sufficient information on these interactions to make some comparison of the sum rules (57) and (58) with experiment.

The first thing to remark is that the contribution from the second term in the integral is likely to be very small in both sum rules; these terms involve  $\pi - \pi$  scattering in the I=2 state and  $K-\pi$  scattering in the I=3/2 state and cross-sections in both these channels seem quite small in the low energy region. The signs of the right hand sides are thus likely to be positive in agreement with the sum rule.

If we now evaluate the right hand sides of these sum rules by putting in the low energy resonant contributions — the  $J^P = 1^- \rho^0$  (750) and  $J^P = 2^+ f^0$  (1254) in (57) and the  $J^P = 1^- K^*$  (891) and  $J^P = 2^+ K^{**}$  (1415) in (58) — we find that we are far from satisfying the sum rules. If, as is likely, the higher partial wave contributions are not very large this means that there must be sizable s-wave

cross sections in both cases and/or large non-resonant contributions in the 1 and 2 partial waves.

## (c) Baryon Magnetic Moments.

A number of different methods of deducing magnetic moment sum rules have been proposed in connection with the algebra of currents. The first was due to Lee<sup>4)</sup> who defined the magnetic moment operator  $\mathcal{M}_{\mathbf{i}}^{\alpha}$  as

$$\mathcal{M}_{i}^{\alpha} = \frac{1}{2} \varepsilon_{ijk} \int x_{j} v_{k}^{\alpha}(x) d^{3}x$$
 (59)

where  $V_k^{\ \alpha}(x)$  is the octet vector current. By taking the commutator of this operator with  $A_1^{\ \alpha}=\int d^3x \ A_1^{\ \alpha}(x)$  where  $A_1^{\ \alpha}(x)$  is the octet axial vector current and using the Lee-Dashen-Gell-Mann procedure one can deduce the SU(6) result  $\mu_p/\mu_n=-3/2$   $^{35)}$  where  $\mu_p$  and  $\mu_n$  are the magnetic moments of the proton and the neutron respectively. In addition, by commuting two members of the set  $\mathcal{M}_i^{\ \alpha}$ , Lee obtained the relation  $\mu_p^{\ 2}=\frac{1}{6}< r_p^{\ 2}>$  where  $< r_p^{\ 2}>^{\frac{1}{2}}$  is the root mean square charge radius of the proton.

Both these results suffer from the difficulty that in view of the way the approximation used forces all states to have orbital angular momentum L=0 (recall section IVa), the only con-

sistent value for  $\mu_p$  or  $\mu_n$  is zero. This difficulty can be remedied either by putting the nucleon in a representation having non-zero angular momentum or by giving the quarks anomalous magnetic moments, but neither of these devices seems particularly attractive.

Subsequently a derivation of a magnetic moment sum rule free from these objections was given by Cabibbo and Radicati. 24)
Starting from the definition

$$D_{t}^{a} = \int d^{3}x J_{o}^{a}(x) x_{i}$$
 (60)

where  $J_0^a(x)$  is the time component of the isovector current, and the commutation relation

$$[D_1^+, D_1^-] = 2 \int J_0^3(x) x_1^2 d^3x$$
, (61)

these authors deduced, by means of the Fubini-Furlan-Adler-Weisberger technique, the sum rule

$$(\mu_p - \mu_n)^2 + \frac{1}{2\pi a^2} \int \frac{dw}{w} \left[2\sigma_1^V - \sigma_3^V\right] = 1/3 < r^2 >, (62)$$

where  $\sigma_{1(3)}^{V}$  is the total cross section for photo-production on a proton of  $I = \frac{1}{2}$  (I = 3/2) states and  $\langle r^2 \rangle^{\frac{1}{2}}$  is the root mean square isovector radius of the nucleon. An approximate evaluation of the integral, neglecting the  $\sigma_{1}^{V}$  contriband assuming that  $\sigma_{3}^{V}$  is dominated by the (3,3) resonance, gives the result

$$|\mu_p - \mu_n| = 5.5$$
 nuclear magnetons,

to be compared with the experimental value of 4.7.

A third approach is that due to Mathur and Pandit. 37)
These authors noticed that on the basis of the quark model
and the algebra of currents one has the relation

$$0 = \int d^{4}x \; \theta(x_{0}) \; [M^{0}(x), J_{\mu}^{el}(0)]$$
 (63)

where  $J_{\mu}^{el}(o)$  is the electromagnetic current vector and  $M^{o}(x)$  is the field operator of any of the neutral pseudoscalar mesons  $(\pi^{o}, K^{o}, \overline{K}^{o}, \eta)$ . On the other hand one can define a causal amplitude

$$T(q, p_1, p_2) =$$

$$\sqrt{\frac{E_1}{M_1} \cdot \frac{E_2}{M_2}} \int d^4x \, e^{-iqx} \langle B_2(p_2) | [M^0(x), J_{\mu}(o) \varepsilon_{\mu}] \, \theta(x_0) | B_1(p_1) \rangle$$
(64)

which is the invariant amplitude or reduced T-matrix element for the reaction

$$\gamma(k) + B_1(p_1) \rightarrow B_2(p_2) + M^0(q)$$
,

the photoproduction of a single neutral pseudoscalar meson on a baryon. ( $B_1$  and  $B_2$  represent baryon states.)

Now eq.(63) shows that

lim. 
$$T(q, p_1, p_2) = 0$$
 (65)

and on expanding T(q, p<sub>1</sub>, p<sub>2</sub>) in CGLN invariant amplitudes<sup>38</sup>) it is seen that eq.(65) represents a condition on only one of these. If one then assumes an unsubtracted relation for this amplitude and in the calculation of the imaginary part only the contributions of the baryons and of the first baryon resonances are retained, eq.(65) implies a relation between baryon magnetic moments. The relations so obtained appear to be in good agreement with experiment.

These results on baryon magnetic moments further encourage us to think that the algebra of currents represents a correct approach to the understanding of the properties of strongly interacting particles.

VI. COVARIANT FORMULATION AND CONNECTION WITH SOFT PION EMISSION.

As a final topic we deal with a very important step in current algebra theory, namely, the development of a method of deducing the consequences of current (or local operator) commutation relations in a formally covariant way. This method, which seems to have been discovered simultaneously by a number of authors, <sup>39)</sup> is very closely related to that used by Nambu and his collaborators <sup>40)</sup> in connection with soft pion emission. Basically what done is to use PCAC and current (or local operator) commutation

relations to link up matrix elements for processes which differ only in the emission or absorption of one or more zero mass pions. Some of the results here are quite promising but there are also some difficulties which arise from the most common formulation of the method. For these reasons we shall now discuss this question in some detail.

The common formulation begins from the identity

$$0 = i \int d^4x \, \partial_{\mu} \left\{ e^{-iqx} \, \theta(x_0) < B(p^0) \middle[ A_{\mu}^k(x), \, O(o) \middle] A(p) > \right\} , \tag{66}$$

where  $A_{\mu}^{k}(x)$  is the  $k^{th}$  isospin component of the axial vector current, O(o) is any local operator evaluated at  $x_{\mu} = 0$ ,  $O(x_{o})$  is the usual step function in the time and  $O(x_{o})$  and  $O(x_{o})$  are arbitrary states having four momenta  $O(x_{o})$  and  $O(x_{o})$  being assumed not to contain a pion of denomination  $O(x_{o})$  denomination  $O(x_{o})$  a small positive imaginary part.

On performing the differentiation in the integrand here we obtain

$$0 = -i q_{\mu} M_{\mu} + \int d^{4}x e^{-iqx} \delta(x_{o}) < B(p') | \left[ A_{4}^{k}(x), O(o) \right] | A(p) >$$

$$+ i \int d^{4}x e^{-iqx} \theta(x_{o}) < B(p') | \left[ \partial_{\mu} A_{\mu}^{k}(x), O(o) \right] | A(p) > , (67)$$

where

$$M_{\mu} = i \int d^4x \, e^{-iqx} \, \theta(x_0) \, \langle B(p) | \left[ A_{\mu}^{k}(x), \, O(0) \right] A(p) \rangle$$
 (68)

Next we employ the PCAC relation

$$\partial_{\mu} A_{\mu}^{k}(x) = c_{\pi} \pi^{k}(x)$$
, (69)

where  $\pi^k(x)$  is the renormalised pion field and then the last term in eq.(67) can be written as

$$\frac{-i c_{\pi}}{q^{2} + m_{\pi}^{2}} \int d^{4}x \ e^{-iqx} (\Box - m_{\pi}^{2}) \ \theta(x_{o}) < B(p^{*}) \left[\pi^{k}(x), \ 0(o)\right] A(p) >$$
(70)

and this is equal to

$$\frac{\alpha_{\pi}}{q^2 + m_{\pi}^2} \sqrt{2q_0} (2\pi)^{3/2} < B(p^*), \pi^k(q) | O(0) | A(p) >$$
(71)

i.e.  $\frac{\alpha}{q^2 + m^2} \sqrt{2q_0} (2\pi)^{3/2}$  times the matrix element of O(0)

between the state A(p) and the state B(p\*) +  $\pi^k$ (q). Hence rearranging eq.(67) we have

$$\frac{c_{\pi}\sqrt{2q_{0}}(2\pi)^{3/2}}{q^{2} + m_{\pi}^{2}} < B(p^{0}) \pi^{k}(q) | O(0) | A(p) >$$

$$= -\int d^{4}x e^{-iqx} \delta(x_{0}) < B(p^{0}) | A^{k}(x), O(0) | A(p) >$$

$$+ i q_{\mu}M_{\mu}. (72)$$

The trick now is to set  $q_{\mu} = 0$  in this relation. When this is done the first term on the right hand side becomes

$$- < B(p^*) | [I_5^k(o), O(o)] | A(p) >$$

where I<sub>5</sub><sup>k</sup>(t) is the k<sup>th</sup> component of the axial isospin defined by

$$I_5^k(t) = \int d^3x A_{14}^k(x, t)$$
.

The commutator here  $\begin{bmatrix} I_5^k(o), O(o) \end{bmatrix}$ , will in all cases of interest be equal to some other local operator - call it  $O_5^k(o)$  - as a result of some assumptions about the operator O(o) (such as: that it is a certain function of quark field operators). This term is therefore equal to

$$- < B(p') | O_5^k(o) | A(p) > .$$

With regard to the second term in (72), namely i  $q_{\mu}M_{\mu}$ , we see that this vanishes as  $q_{\mu} \rightarrow 0$  except when  $M_{\mu}$  has a pole at that value. This situation occurs when, on the insertion of a complete set of states between the two operators in the commutator in the expression for  $M_{\mu}$ , eq.(68), there is a contribution from a state degenerate in mass with either of the states A(p) or  $B(p^{\bullet})$ . The contribution here will also be generally calculable in terms of other known parameters.

Thus we arrive at a relation of the form

$$\frac{e_{\pi} (2\pi)^{3/2}}{m_{\pi}^{2}} \lim_{q_{\mu} \to 0} \sqrt{2q_{0}} \langle B(p^{*}) \pi^{k}(q) | O(o) | A(p) \rangle$$

$$= - \langle B(p^{*}) | O_{5}^{k}(o) | A(p) \rangle + \lim_{q_{\mu} \to 0} i q_{\mu} M_{\mu},$$
(73)

where the first term on the right hand side represents the current (or local operator) commutation relation contribution.

As an example we consider the case when  $O(o) = V_{\mu}^{1}(o)$ , the  $I_{3} = \frac{1}{2}$  component of the strangeness changing vector current of weak interactions,  $A(p) = K^{+}(p)$  a single  $K^{+}$  state of momentum p and  $B(p^{\bullet}) = 0$ , the vacuum state. In this instance there is no contribution from the term  $\lim_{q \to 0} i q_{\mu} M_{\mu}$  and the operator  $O_{5}^{k}(o)$  is  $\frac{1}{2} A_{\mu}^{1}(o)$ , the  $I_{3} = \frac{1}{2}$  component of the strangeness changing axial current. We therefore get the relation

$$\frac{e^{\frac{\sigma}{2}}}{\frac{\pi^{\circ}}{2}}(2\pi)^{3/2}\lim_{q_{\mu}\to 0}\sqrt{2q_{o}}<\pi^{\circ}(q)|V_{\mu}^{1}(\circ)|K^{+}(p)> = \frac{1}{2}<0|A_{\mu}^{1}(\circ)|K^{+}(p)>.$$
(74)

Then with the definitions

$$<\pi^{0}(q)|V_{\mu}^{1}(o)|K^{+}(p)>$$

$$= -\frac{1}{\sqrt{2}}\frac{1}{(2\pi)^{3}}\frac{-\frac{1}{2}}{\sqrt{4p_{0}q_{0}}}\left\{f_{+}[-p^{2}, -q^{2}, -(p-q)^{2}](p+q)_{\mu} + f_{-}[-p^{2}, -q^{2}, -(p-q)^{2}](p-q)_{\mu}\right\}$$

$$(75)$$

and

$$\langle o | A_{\mu}^{1}(o) | K^{+}(p) \rangle = \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{3/2}} \frac{1}{\sqrt{2p_{o}}} i p_{\mu} f_{K}$$
 (76)

and the relations

$$\frac{\overset{\mathbf{c}}{\overset{\mathbf{c}}{m^2}}}{\overset{\mathbf{c}}{\overset{\mathbf{c}}{m^2}}} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \overset{\mathbf{c}}{\overset{\mathbf{c}}{m^2}} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \overset{\mathbf{f}}{\pi} \quad \text{and} \quad \overset{\mathbf{f}}{K} = \frac{\overset{\mathbf{c}}{K}}{\overset{\mathbf{c}}{m^2}} \quad [\text{see eq.}(51)]$$

we find

$$f_{*}(m_{k}^{2}, o, m_{k}^{2}) + f_{-}(m_{k}^{2}, o, m_{k}^{2}) = \frac{f_{\pi}}{f_{K}}$$
 (77)

This is the Callan-Treiman relation  $^{41}$  linking the sum of the form factors  $f_+$  and  $f_-$  for  $K_{l_3}$  decay extrapolated to zero pion mass with the ratio of the  $K_{l_2}$  and  $\pi_{l_2}$  decay constants.

A precision check of this relation requires a knowledge of (1) the functional dependence of  $f_+ + f_-$  on the pion mass and the momentum transfer squared and (2) the value of the ratio  $f_\pi/f_K$  - this depends on the ratio  $G_A^{\ o}/G_A^{\ 1}$  of the bare coupling constants of strangeness conserving and strangeness changing axial vector currents and therefore on the model of weak interactions. At present such detailed information is not available but as a rough check let us assume that the form factors  $f_+$  and  $f_-$  are constant, that  $f_+ = 1$  in accordance with the Ademollo-Gatto theorem<sup>42</sup> and that  $f_K/f_\pi = 1.28$ , which is the value given by Cabibbo's theory<sup>43</sup>. In that event we obtain for  $\xi = f_-/f_+$  the value 0.28 which is very different from the presently indicated one of about  $-1^{43}$ . This result should not be taken as evidence against the relation (77) but, as is more likely, that the assumption of constant form factors is

incorrect.

The above is a simple application of formula (73). A more complicated one arises in the case of weak non-leptonic decays. In that event O(o) is  $H^{NL}(o)$ , the non-leptonic weak interaction Hamiltonian, and A(p) and B(p') are single baryon states differing in strangeness by one unit. This problem was first studied by Sugawara and Suzuki and later by other authors and a number of sum rules for the various amplitudes were obtained. We shall not reproduce these relations but shall rather focus our attention on the term  $\lim_{\mu \to 0} \mathbf{1}_{\mu} \mathbf{1}_{\mu}$ , which here gives rise to one of the difficulties  $\mathbf{1}_{\mu}$ 

We recall that this term is non-vanishing only if, on inserting a complete set of states in the expression for  $M_{\mu}$ , eq.(68), there is a contribution from a state degenerate in mass with either A(p) or  $B(p^{*})$ . In the case of  $\pi^{\pm}$  emission there are no such contributions because there are no two baryons degenerate in mass and strangeness but differing by the unit of charge (here we do not neglect mass differences between the members of an isomultiplet); on the other hand for  $\pi^{0}$  emission there are non-vanishing contributions because now the states A(p) and  $B(p^{*})$  themselves contribute to the sum over intermediate states. Thus we have the difficulty that the term  $\lim_{n \to \infty} i \ q_{\mu} M_{\mu}$  gives no contribution to charged pion decay but does  $q_{\mu}^{\to 0}$ 0 contribute to neutral pion decay.

One resolution of this difficulty is simply to neglect mass differences within multiplets. With this assumption the term i  $q_{\mu}$  M has a well defined  $q_{\mu} > 0$  limit for both charged and neutral pion decay. One then gets sum rules for the p-wave amplitudes which are experimentally indistinguishable from the  $\Delta I = \frac{1}{2}$  predictions, without postulating that the Hamiltonian is a pure  $I = \frac{1}{2}$  operator (it can have an I = 3/2 part also).

Another way out comes from an examination of the Born term in the amplitude. In this term one finds, in the  $q_{\mu} \to 0$  limit, an asymmetry between charged and neutral pion decay analogous to that in the term i  $q_{\mu} M_{\mu}$ ; in fact this time the neutral decay term vanishes while the charged one does not. So if we denote the term on the left hand side of eq.(73) by R(q), the Born contribution to this quantity by  $R_{Born}(q)$ , and the difference  $R(q) - R_{Born}(q)$  by R(q) we can then write eq.(73) as

$$\widetilde{R}(o) = \lim_{q \to 0} [R(q) - R_{Born}(q)]$$

$$= - \langle B(p^*) | [Q_5^k(o), H_{pc}^{NL}(o)] | A(p) \rangle + \lim_{q \to 0} [i q_{\mu} M_{\mu} - R_{Born}(q)],$$
(78)

In this form we have a quantity,  $\widetilde{R}(q)$ , which tends to a well defined value in the  $q \to 0$  limit and if we assume that  $\widetilde{R}(q)$  does not vary very much with q, so that we can replace  $\widetilde{R}(q)$  everywhere by  $\widetilde{R}(o)$ , then we can write for the whole amplitude

$$R(q) = R_{Born}(q) + \widetilde{R}(0). \qquad (79)$$

From this formula we can obtain the same  $\Delta I = \frac{1}{2}$ -like sum rules as above. A full discussion of this matter will be given elsewhere.

A second and more serious difficulty with the above procedure is the following. We recall that we have used in eqs. (70) and (71) the reduction formula

$$\sqrt{2q_{o}} (2\pi)^{3/2} < B(p^{\circ}), \pi^{k}(q) | O(o) | A(p) >$$

$$= i \int d^{4}x e^{-iqx} (\Box - m_{\pi}^{2}) < B(p^{\circ}) | \Theta(x_{o}) [\pi^{k}(x), O(o)] | A(p) >$$

$$= i(q^{2} + m_{\pi}^{2}) \int d^{4}x e^{-iqx} < B(p^{\circ}) | \Theta(x_{o}) [\pi^{k}(x), O(o)] | A(p) > .$$
(80)

Now it is to be emphasised that this formula is derived precisely on the assumption that the pion is on its mass shell and consequently the term on the right hand side is to be understood in the sense of the limit of this quantity as  $q^2 \rightarrow -m_{\pi}^2$ . Thus if we write

$$\int d^{4}x e^{-iqx} \langle B(p^{*}) | \theta(x_{o}) [\pi^{k}(x), 0(o)] | A(p) \rangle$$

$$= \frac{A(q^{2})}{q^{2} + m_{\pi}^{2}} + B(q^{2})$$
 (81)

for arbitrary values of  $q^2$ , where  $B(q^2)$  has no pole at  $q^2 = -m_{\pi}^2$ , eq.(80) is simply

$$\sqrt{2q_0} (2\pi)^{3/2} < B(p^*), \pi^k(q) | O(0) | A(p) > = i A(-m_{\pi}^2)$$
 (82)

The matrix element for the pion at its physical mass is then  $iA(-m_{\pi}^{2})$ .

Consider now what happens when we set  $q_{\mu} = 0$  in eq.(80). From eqs.(80) and (81) we find

$$\lim_{\substack{q \to 0 \\ \mu \to 0}} \sqrt{2q_0} (2\pi)^{3/2} < B(p^*), \pi^k(q) | O(o) | A(p) > = i A(o) + i m_{\pi}^2 B(o).$$
(83)

Comparing this with eq.(82) we see that what we have got is not simply the physical matrix element with the pion mass continued to zero but we have an additional term besides. Thus the limit  $q_{\mu} \rightarrow 0$  is not equivalent to continuing the external pion mass to zero. In order to identify the limit  $q_{\mu} \rightarrow 0$  with the zero pion mass limit it is necessary to assume that B(o) is zero or small and it is not obvious that this is in general the case. This difficulty could be quite a serious one for the present formulation.

## Conclusion.

This concludes our presentation of current algebra theory and its applications. The present treatment is far from exhaustive  $^{48}$  but it does trace the development of the subject along a fairly central path through the subject. It is seen that the ideas contained in this development have proved fairly fruitful and have led to some real progress in understanding elementary particle interactions. The situation is still not completely satisfactory, however, and in particular methods of computing the effects of mass continuation are badly needed. Also the need to take the  $q_{\mu} \rightarrow 0$  limit ought to be overcome in some way. One topic

of those omitted deserves special mention, namely that of Okubo and his collaborators on models and distinguishing between them by means of current algebra techniques. While the first heady enthusiasm for the subject has now waned somewhat, it is felt that current algebra ideas will continue to prove useful in elementary particle physics for a long time to come.

### Acknowledgement.

The author would like to express his gratitude to Professor Synge and other members of the Staff of the School of Theoretical Physics, Dublin Institute for Advanced Studies, for their interest in this work. It was carried out during 1965-66 while the author was a Visiting Professor at the School.

#### REFERENCES

- 1. M. Gell-Mann, Phys. Rev. 125, 1067 (1962).
- 2. M. Gell-Mann and M. Levy, Nuovo Cimento 16, 705 (1960).
- M. Gell-Mann, Physics 1, 63 (1964); Phys. Rev. Letters
  14, 77 (1965); M. Gell-Mann and Y. Ne'eman, Ann. Phys.
  (N.Y.) 30, 360 (1964); R. Feynman, M. Gell-Mann and
  G. Zweig, Phys. Rev. Letters 13, 678 (1964).
- 4. B.W. Lee, Phys. Rev. Letters 14, 673 (1965), (E) ibid. 14, 850 (1965).
- 5. R. Dashen and M. Gell-Mann, Phys. Letters 17, 142 and 145 (1965).
- 6. S. Coleman, Phys. Letters 19, 144 (1965); S. Okubo, Trieste preprint IC/66/10.
- 7. S. Fubini and G. Furlan, Physics 4, 229 (1965).

  cf. S. Fubini, G. Furlan and C. Rosetti, Nuovo Cimento
  40, 1171 (1965).
- 8. E. Noether, Nachr. d. Kgl. Ges. d. Wiss. Göttingen (1918)
  p. 235. For a modern presentation see P. Roman, "Theory
  of Elementary Particles", North Holland, Amsterdam, 1964
  p.217.
- 9a. S. Adler, Phys. Rev. Letters 14, 1051 (1965); Phys. Rev. 140, B736 (1965).
- 9b. W.I. Weisberger, Phys. Rev. Letters 14, 1047 (1965); Phys. Rev. 143, 1302 (1966).

- 10. O.W. Greenberg, Phys. Rev. Letters 13, 598 (1964).
- 11. J. Schwinger, Phys. Rev. Letters 3, 296 (1959).
- 12. C. Bouchiat and Ph. Meyer, Orsay preprint, March 1966.
- 13. S. Okubo, Phys. Letters 17, 172 (1965).
- 14. M.P. Khanna, S. Okubo and N. Makunda, Nuovo Cimento 43A, 33 (1966).
- 15. C. Ryan, Ann. Phys. (N.Y.) 38, 1 (1966).
- 16. See, for example, C.H. Albright and L.S. Liu, Phys. Rev. 140, B 748 (1965).
- 17. M. Cini, E. Ferrari and R. Gatto, Phys. Rev. Letters 2, 7 (1959).
  - W.M. Cottingham, Ann. Phys. (N.Y.) 25, 424 (1963).
- 18. R. Haag, Phys. Rev. <u>112</u>, 669 (1958);
  K. Nishijima, Phys. Rev. <u>111</u>, 995 (1958);
  M. Zimmermann, Nuovo Cimento <u>10</u>, 597 (1958).
- 19. M. Eckhause, R.J. Harris Jr., W.B. Shuler, R.T. Seegel and R.E. Walsh, Phys. Letters 19, 348 (1966).
- 20. C.P. Bhalla, Phys. Letters 19, 691 (1966).
- 21. J.M. Freeman, J.G. Jenkin, G. Murray and W.E. Burcham, Phys. Rev. Letters 16, 959 (1966).
- 22. M. Goldberger and S. Treiman, Phys. Rev. 110, 1478 (1958).
- 23. R. Dashen and M.Gell-Mann, Symmetry Principles at High Energy 3, Freeman and Co. San Francisco, 1966; and Phys. Rev. Letters 17, 340 (1966).

- M. Cabibbo and L. Radicati, Phys. Letters 19, 697 (1966);
  I.S. Gerstein and B.W. Lee, Phys. Rev. 144, 1142 (1966);
  D. Amati and S. Bergia, CERN Report 1966 (unpublished);
  C. Ryan, Phys. Rev. 147, 1139 (1966).
- 25. H. Harari, Phys. Rev. Letters 16, 964 (1966);

  I.S. Gerstein and B.W. Lee, Phys. Rev. Letters 16, 1060 (1966);

  see also G. Alterelli, R. Gatto, L. Maiani and G. Preparata,

  Phys. Rev. Letters 16, 918 (1966).
- 26. B.W. Lee, High-Energy Physics and Elementary Particles, IAEA Vienna (1965) p.371.
- 27. M. Cabibbo, Phys. Rev. Letters 10, 531 (1963).
- 28. See the recent discussion by M. Brene, L. Veje, M. Roos and C. Cronström, Phys. Rev. 149, 1288 (1966).
- 29. This sum rule was first deduced by I. Bar-Nir, Phys. Rev. Letters 16, 473 (1966); (E) 16, 927 (1966).

  Similar rules were derived in ref.2 of 9b and in the following three references.
- 30. L.K. Pandit and J. Schechter, Phys. Letters 19, 56 (1965).
- 31. D. Amati, C. Bouchiat and J. Nuyts, Phys. Letters 19, 59 (1965).
- 32. C.A. Levinson and I.J. Muzinich, Phys. Rev. Letters <u>15</u>, 715 (1965) and (E) <u>15</u>, 842 (1965).
- 33. G. Trilling, Proceedings of Argonne Conference on Weak Interactions, Oct. 1965.

- 34. A.H. Rosenfeld, A. Barbaro-Galtieri, W. Barkas, P.L. Bastien, and M. Roos, Rev. Mod. Phys. 37, 633 (1965).
  M.A.B. Beg, B.W. Lee and A. Pais, Phys. Rev. Letters 13, 514 (1964);
- 36. On this point see B.W. Lee, Phys. Rev. Letters (E) 14, 850 (1965) and C. Ryan ref. 15.
- 37. L.K. Pandit and V. Mathur, Phys. Rev. 147, 965 (1966).

B. Sakita, Phys. Rev. Letters 13, 643 (1964).

- 38. G. Chen, M. Goldberger, Y. Nambu and F.E. Low, Phys. Rev. 106, 1337 (1957).
- 39. S. Fubini and G. Furlan, Physics 1, 229 (1965);
  W.A. Alessandrini, M.A. Beg and L.S. Brown, Phys. Rev. 144, 1137 (1966);
  S. Okubo, Nuovo Cimento 41A, 586 (1966);
  W.S. Mathur, S. Okubo and L.K. Pandit, Phys. Rev. Letters 16, 371 (1966).
- Y. Nambu and D.Lurie, Phys. Rev. <u>125</u>, 1429 (1962);
   Y. Nambu and E. Shrauner, Phys. Rev. <u>128</u>, 862 (1962).
- 41. C.G. Callan and S.B. Treiman, Phys. Rev. Letters 16, 153 (1966). See also V.S. Mathur et al. cited in ref. 39 above.
- 42. M. Adenollo and R. Gatto, Phys. Rev. Letters 13, 264 (1964).
- 43. See M. Cabibbo, Rapporteur's Talk at XIII International
  Conference on High Energy Physics, Berkeley, August-September 1966.

- 44. H. Sugawara, Phys. Rev. Letters <u>15</u>, 870 (1965); <u>15</u>, 997 (E) (1965).
- 45. M. Suzuki, Phys. Rev. Letters 15, 986 (1965).
- 46. L.S. Brown and C.M. Sommerfield, Phys. Rev. Letters 16, 751 (1966);
  - Fayyazuddin and Riazuddin, Nuovo Cimento 47A, 222 (1967).
- 47. The phase convention was not correctly applied in this paper.
- 48. A very complete survey of current algebras is given by B. Renner, Lectures on Current Algebras, Rutherford Laboratory Report RHEL / R 126, 1966.

Section reader your darkwar the refuel/86699 Are 181

#### ERRATA

P.40, line 8: The references in question are 4, 5, and 48.

p. 43, last line: The factor  $10^{-12}$  should read  $10^{-13}$ 

p.44, line 3: do.

p.45, eq. (54): The factor 10<sup>-10</sup> should read 10<sup>-11</sup>.

Eq. (56) should read:

$$(G_{A}^{1})^{2} M^{4} \leq \left[ \begin{cases} 0.49 \\ 0.48 \\ 0.73 \end{cases} + 0.081 \right] \times 10^{-11}.$$
 (56)

p.58, Eq. (78): Delete subscript PC from  $H_{PC}^{NL}(6)$ , to read  $H^{NL}(6)$ .

p.59, line 3: after "above" insert the phrase "if the Born terms can be neglected".

p.66. Insert reference 49: S. Okubo, Suppl. Prog. Theor. Phys. 37-38, 114 (1966).